
 
 

INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING 
COUNCIL 

MEETING MINUTES OF 
March 5, 2021 

9:30 am – 11:30am, Zoom 
 

Members Present: Jessica Kaven, Lisa Palmer, Allison Hughes, Alex Claxton, Katie Perkins,  
Rebekah Sidman-Taveau, Chris Burns, Joan Murphy, Susan Mahoney, Tammy Robinson,  
Jessica Boyle, James Carranza, Karen Engel 
Members Absent: Pisith Keo, Sakol Bun, Jill Sumstad 
Guests: Jamie Hui, Julian Branch, Nadya Sigona 

 

 

1) Adoption and Approval of Agenda 

Motion – To adopt agenda: M/S: Allison Hughes, Alex Claxton 
Discussion – The committee welcomed new member Jessica Boyle.  
Abstentions – none 
Approval – approved unanimously 

2) Approval of Minutes 
Motion – To approve minutes of February 19, 2021: M/S: Rebekah 
Sidman-Taveau, Chris Burns 
Discussion – none 
Abstentions – none 
Approval – approved  
 

3) Early Alert Process 
 
Nadya Sigona presented on behalf of this item. Nadya shared that she was visiting the 
committee to share more about the process and answer any questions the committee 
may have. Nadya shared the following presentation with IPC: 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nadya shared that counselors receive an average of 150 early alerts per semester. She shared that 
she is proud of the college for having an early alert system as part of the student success program 
as the campus is the only one in the district utilizing this system. Nadya confirmed that this is a 
voluntary program for students and professors. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
Nadya shared that while this is the current process, it may change with the CRM and it is being 
considered to add the early alert into the new process. Nadya is also working with the CARES 
team to find more effective ways to serve not only students but also professors with this process. 
Susan Mahoney shared that she uses the system, and asked for clarification regarding the number 
of follow ups the student would receive by a counselor. Additionally, Susan asked if 
improvement is not witnessed after an early alert is submitted, if the instructor should resubmit a 
new alert later in the semester. Nadya shared that normally, after the first attempt, students are 



emailed and called and the intervention begins, but that some students are not receptive to the 
help. Nadya recommended that professors send another alert if no change is observed as that 
allows counselors to be aware of student progress and provides an opportunity for counselors to 
reconnect and follow up with the student. Rebekah asked about the differences and similarities 
between the early alert and a CARES report, noting that the early alert is more academically 
focused while the CARES report may focus more on a personal issue. Nadya shared that Dean 
Hartman is part of the CARES team and recognizes that there may be some overlap. Many 
students are sent to the wellness center after conversations with academic counselors. Nadya 
shared that the campus is in the process of seeing how a partnership can be built between the two 
reporting systems. Understanding how personal and academic issues can be addressed will be a 
focus of how reporting is incorporated into the new CRM system. Susan shared that she has been 
much more lenient this semester regarding dropping students for non-attendance although she is 
also aware that it may be some students’ best option to drop the class due to how much they have 
going on in their lives and catching up may be challenging. Susan asked for clarity on whether 
counselors discuss options such as this with students. Nadya clarified that counselors do discuss 
options with students, and that ultimately it is their choice to remain the course or not. James and 
Susan shared that they would like to invite Nadya to a division meeting to share this information 
with division faculty. James added that it would be helpful for faculty to learn about the types of 
things that would rise to the level of warranting an early alert. Nadya added that she is continuing 
to work with the PRIE office to obtain more data.  
 
 

4) Program Review Deferral & Extension Process (DRAFT) 
 

Allison Hughes presented on behalf of this item. Allison shared the following second draft 
proposed by the Program Review Work Group related to items regarding how faculty may 
request either an extension or deferral, how this will be monitored, and who will be responsible 
for granting this. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Jessica added that feedback is encouraged. Susan asked for clarification regarding the cycle 
length and if a one year deferral is granted if that also shifts the program’s place in the cycle 
overall. Allison shared that instructional cycles are on a three year cycle and CTE programs 
are on a four year cycle. In the past, when programs have been deferred, programs are 
completed the following year, but the cycle is not permanently changed. James asked for 
clarification regarding the timing of a five day extension. Allison shared that in the 
experience of the committee, faculty members do not typically need much more time than 
this, and the timeline of program review exists because events in the process must take 
place in a timely fashion. A longer extension would likely not be possible as it would affect 
the necessary process milestones that take place each cycle. James suggested that if an 
extension of more than five days was needed, the faculty member and their dean consult 
and notify either IPC or the VPI. James shared that it would be helpful to know ahead of 
time if a faculty member is anticipating not being able to meet the current deadlines so they 
can work together to best support the program’s needs. James asked if there was a situation 
where an extension of five days would not be granted. James suggested focusing on the 
timeline and the process and deadlines that must be followed to ensure the appropriate 
movement through the timeline. If faculty members cannot meet the deadline within five 



days, consideration of the next cycle may then be a focus. Allison added that the work 
group wanted to ensure faculty members are notifying the appropriate people involved in 
the process if they require either an extension or a deferral as the notification piece is 
crucial so appropriate preparations can be made, and that this is something expected of 
everyone taking part in program review. James suggested that the wording of ‘programs 
may apply for an extension’ could be changed to ‘programs may request with the 
appropriate dean in advance an extension.’ James added that if deans know in advance that 
someone is struggling, they can possibly assist with ensuring they meet the deadline. Lisa 
commented that using the word “abide” sounds paternalistic and harsh and suggested either 
“follow” or “adhere to” as alternate ways of clarifying this piece of the policy. 
 
Jessica added that this is not the only time this will be presented to IPC and encouraged 
members to continue considering suggestions moving forward. Jessica appreciated the 
suggestions that were posed in the spirit of support and encouragement for campus 
programs.  

 
 

5) Program Review Timeline  
 
Jessica shared that what IPC is reviewing is also being reviewed at SSPC as this will impact 
both program review cycles. Allison shared the following Program Review Timeline with 
the committee:  
 
 
 

 
 



Allison shared that the main edits for the timeline included updating the wording for the 
Mid-October, Late-October, and Early November milestones on the timeline. Allison then 
discussed the proposed dates for the first, second, and third deadlines: 
 

 
 
Susan noted that data dashboards will be available at the beginning of August and she 
appreciated that offering. She also noted that she would prefer to complete one of her 
program reviews over the summer. Karen added that this was a great point, and mentioned 
that thanks to Alex Claxton, data dashboards for program review are now live connected to 
the data warehouse and anytime the data changes in the warehouse, the change is reflected. 
Karen added that spring 2021 grades cannot be posted until they are submitted and this has 
historically been a summer exercise. Alex confirmed that grade integration should take 
place by approximately mid-June. James suggested informing people of this, and Karen 
added that the program review workgroup has requested of PRIE that in addition to 
completing dashboards, packets also be completed. Susan asked for clarification between 
packets and the dashboard. Alex clarified that packets are fixed, for example, a PDF, and 
dashboards allow for interaction. Karen added that there is a risk when faculty members 
believe the packets are all that should be reviewed, as the goal is for people to explore their 
data in a continuous way with the dashboards. Karen shared the following with the 
committee to review the data dashboards: https://canadacollege.edu/prie/Data-
Dashboards.php. James added that something that has been noted year after year in program 
review is that people will pick different data points and there is much inconsistency and it 
can be overwhelming. Having a starting point as a college based on planning documents 
and success metrics, there are some key data points that should be the focus in the name of 
consistency. Alex added that an easy way to obtain consistency is to revise questions in the 
program review to reflect the intended information. Jessica added that the questions are 
under the purview of Academic Senate. Lisa added that she would like clarity on when 
something is statistically significant. Alex added that a rule of thumb is anything under 30 
people poses issues associated with small sample size. With regard to the equity 
dashboard/packets, a significant margin of error is highlighted in red. Rebekah added that 
the purpose of having equity data or gaps is for the program to reflect and decide how to 
make decisions to best support students and programs, even if something is not of statistical 
significance. Susan agreed and added that the lack of a significant sample size could reflect 
something further to explore. Susan shared that she feels departments should complete 
specific analyses so consistent comparisons can be made. Jessica clarified that since 
program review is under faculty purview, the questions go through Academic Senate, and 
the topic of questions should be on an upcoming AS agenda. Jessica mentioned that IPC 

https://canadacollege.edu/prie/Data-Dashboards.php
https://canadacollege.edu/prie/Data-Dashboards.php


can also make suggestions to pose to AS. 
 
 

Motion – To approve the Program Review Timeline including the image 
and specific due dates with the recommendation of making data 
dashboards available by mid-June: M/S: Alex Claxton, Lisa Palmer 
Discussion – none 
Abstentions – none 
Approval – approved  

 
 

6) Good of the Order 
 

• Alex shared that the first subcommittee meeting regarding release time took place 
and it went well. He is anticipating returning to the committee soon with actionable 
items. 

• Tammy shared that she has had some concerns as there has not been a person in the 
CTE Liaison role. Tammy met with Jessica and Academic Senate President Diana 
Tedone-Goldstone to discuss this. Dr. Robinson was concerned as this position did 
not go through the process that other reassigned time positions did. Dr. Robinson 
proposed a very short timeline and sending out the position campus wide with a job 
description so that applications can be submitted. The CTE Liaison works with CTE 
and strong workforce funds and would be attending the BACCC meetings and 
reporting this information back to senate in addition to serving as a tri-chair on the 
campus in terms of decisions being made with strong workforce funding working 
with a dean and Director Julian Branch so representation is present. Lisa shared that 
she agrees having the process that everyone follows is logical and will lead to 
clarity. Tammy clarified that this position would be for the remainder of the 
semester, and for the next two years, the position would enter the typical cycle term 
again.  

• Jessica asked the committee if IPC wanted to suggest to Academic Senate questions 
for the program review process. Karen suggested asking more pointed questions in 
regard to student equity and representation. Rebekah shared that perhaps someone 
from ACES can work with the senate to obtain more guidance surrounding working 
with the questions. Jessica shared that David Eck did mention that feedback from 
the anti-racist work group was requested. James added that it would be helpful for 
the group to review the questions to ensure department planning and college 
planning remain in alignment. Rebekah added that the campus may want to consider 
the recent review from the Center for Urban Education when considering these 
questions with a focus on racial equity. James agreed that this needs to be an 
embedded part of the structure. Karen added that April 12 was the date the work 
group wanted to set to gather any changes to the questions and would like to bring 
the discussion back to IPC.  

 
 

7) Adjournment 



 
Motion – To adjourn the meeting: M/S: Tammy Robinson, Jessica 
Kaven 
Discussion – none 
Abstentions – none 
Approval – approved  

 
a) Meeting adjourned at 11:07 am. 


	INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL
	MEETING MINUTES OF
	1) Adoption and Approval of Agenda
	2) Approval of Minutes
	3) Early Alert Process
	Nadya Sigona presented on behalf of this item. Nadya shared that she was visiting the committee to share more about the process and answer any questions the committee may have. Nadya shared the following presentation with IPC:
	4) Program Review Deferral & Extension Process (DRAFT)
	Allison Hughes presented on behalf of this item. Allison shared the following second draft proposed by the Program Review Work Group related to items regarding how faculty may request either an extension or deferral, how this will be monitored, and wh...
	Jessica added that feedback is encouraged. Susan asked for clarification regarding the cycle length and if a one year deferral is granted if that also shifts the program’s place in the cycle overall. Allison shared that instructional cycles are on a t...
	Jessica added that this is not the only time this will be presented to IPC and encouraged members to continue considering suggestions moving forward. Jessica appreciated the suggestions that were posed in the spirit of support and encouragement for ca...
	5) Program Review Timeline
	Jessica shared that what IPC is reviewing is also being reviewed at SSPC as this will impact both program review cycles. Allison shared the following Program Review Timeline with the committee:
	Allison shared that the main edits for the timeline included updating the wording for the Mid-October, Late-October, and Early November milestones on the timeline. Allison then discussed the proposed dates for the first, second, and third deadlines:
	Susan noted that data dashboards will be available at the beginning of August and she appreciated that offering. She also noted that she would prefer to complete one of her program reviews over the summer. Karen added that this was a great point, and ...
	6) Good of the Order
	 Alex shared that the first subcommittee meeting regarding release time took place and it went well. He is anticipating returning to the committee soon with actionable items.
	 Tammy shared that she has had some concerns as there has not been a person in the CTE Liaison role. Tammy met with Jessica and Academic Senate President Diana Tedone-Goldstone to discuss this. Dr. Robinson was concerned as this position did not go t...
	 Jessica asked the committee if IPC wanted to suggest to Academic Senate questions for the program review process. Karen suggested asking more pointed questions in regard to student equity and representation. Rebekah shared that perhaps someone from ...

